
LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP - 
STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE GROUP

TUESDAY, 15TH MARCH, 2016

A MEETING of the LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP - STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE GROUP 

will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNCIL HEADQUARTERS, NEWTOWN ST 

BOSWELLS on TUESDAY, 15 MARCH 2016 at 2.30 pm

J. J. WILKINSON,
Clerk to the Council,
9 March 2016

BUSINESS

1. Apologies for Absence. 

2. Order of Business. 

3. Declarations of Interest. 

4. Minute (Pages 1 - 4) 5 mins

Minute of the Meeting of the Limited Liability Partnership Strategic 
Governance Group held on 16 February 2016 to be approved and signed by 
the Chairman.  (Copy attached.)

5. Any Other Items Previously Circulated. 

6. Any Other Items which the Chairman Decides are Urgent. 

7. Minute (Pages 5 - 6) 5 mins

Private section of the Minute of the Meeting of the Limited Liability 
Partnership Strategic Governance Group held on 10 November 2015 to be 
approved and signed by the Chairman.  (Copy attached.)  

8. Business Plan (Pages 7 - 36) 60 mins

Consider the SB Cares Business Plan for 2016/17.  (Copy attached.)

Public Document Pack



NOTES
1. Timings given above are only indicative and not intended to inhibit Members’ 

discussions.

2. Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any 
item of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to 
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the 
Minute of the meeting.

Membership of Committee:- Councillors F. Renton (Chair), J. Brown, J. Greenwell, J. G. Mitchell, 
B White.  Mr J. Wilson.

Please direct any enquiries to Pauline Bolson.   Tel No 01835 826503
Email:  pbolson@scotborders.gov.uk



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP – 
STRATEGIC GOVERNANCE GROUP 

 
 MINUTE of Meeting of the LIMITED 

LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP - STRATEGIC 
GOVERNANCE GROUP held in Council 
Chamber, Council Headquarters, Newtown 
St Boswells on Tuesday, 16th February, 
2016 at 2.00 pm. 

    
 

Present:- Councillors F. Renton (Chair), J. Brown, J. Greenwell, J. G. Mitchell and 
B White. 

In Attendance:- E Torrance (Chair Project Board), D Robertson (Chief Financial Officer SBC), 
J Collin (Internal Audit Manager SBC), J Wilson (Chairman SB Cares), (P 
Barr (Managing Director SB Cares), D Collins (Finance and Commercial 
Director SB Cares), L Crombie (Operations Director SB Cares), P Cathrow 
(Service Development Manager SB Cares), Democratic Services Officer (P 
Bolson). 

 

 
1. WELCOME  

The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting of the Limited Liability Partnership 
Strategic Governance Group (LLPSGG). 
 
DECISION 
NOTED. 
 

2. MINUTE  
There had been circulated copies of the Minute of the meeting of 10 November 2015. 
 
DECISION 
APPROVED the Minute for signature by the Chair. 
 

3. MATTER ARISING 
With reference to paragraph 1 of the Minute of the meeting of 10 November 2015, Mrs 
Torrance advised Members that she had not received a response to her most recent 
communication regarding the appointment of a representative from the NHS to the Limited 
Liability Partnership - Strategic Governance Group (LLPSGG) and would therefore follow 
this up again in advance of the next meeting of the Group. 

 
DECISION 
NOTED. 
 

4. QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORTING  
4(a) SB Cares Budget Monitoring as at 31 December 2015 
 With reference to paragraph 4(a) of the Minute of the meeting of 10 November 2015, 

there had been circulated copies of a report by the Finance and Commercial Director of 
SB Cares informing the Strategic Governance Group of the financial position for SB Cares 
at 31 December 2015.  A further update summary was circulated at the meeting.  
Members were advised that SB Cares Senior Management Team had reviewed the 
progress made to deliver agreed efficiencies and new business and a profit of £471k was 
now predicted for Quarter 3.  With reference to expenditure, Ms Collins explained that 
direct costs had been higher than expected in January 2016.  Over the 2015/16 festive 
period, a high proportion of staff who had worked on the statutory holidays had opted to 
be paid rather than take the hours back at another time.  This had not been anticipated by 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



management and was the main pressure that contributed to a loss of £75k in January 
2016, giving a shortfall figure of £99k against the Quarter 3 forecast for the month.  The 
resultant increase in the payroll would be reflected in the figures for January 2016.  Fewer 
staff took holidays during the months of January and February and as this had not been 
factored into the figures presented in the report, it was possible that the forecast for the 
year would improve.  Ms Collins went on to explain that the overall income for January 
2016 was in line with the forecast of £1.545m and that the revised forecast had increased 
by £106k due to orders received for the ability equipment for the month of February 2016.  
Discussion followed and Mrs Torrance explained that, as the level of care often varied 
over the festive period, a review of the way in which holidays and Public Holidays were 
managed during these times would be beneficial to the service.  Mr Barr advised that all 
measures were being taken to bring the financial position back on target and he was 
confident that the Financial Plan would be delivered for 2015/16.  Ms Collins added that 
SB Cares was working with the Council's HR section to review the arrangements for 
Public Holiday working and Members were advised that no errors in payments had been 
identified.  Members requested further information about the festive period payments and 
it was agreed that a detailed analysis would be provided to the Group at its meeting on 17 
May 2016.   
 
DECISION 
(a) NOTED:- 
 
 (i) SB Cares financial position at 31 December 2015; and 
 
 (ii) that information would be shared with Scottish Borders Council to 

inform the revenue monitoring position. 
 
(b) AGREED that a detailed analysis of the payments made to staff for hours 

worked over the festive period 2015/16 would be provided to the Group at its 
meeting on 17 May 2016. 

 
4(b)  Key Performance Indicators for SB Cares 
 (i) With reference to paragraph 4(b) of the Minute of the meeting of 10 November 

2015, there had been circulated copies of a report by the Finance and Commercial 
Director of SB Cares updating the Strategic Governance Group on the development 
of SB Cares Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) as at 31 December 2015.  The 
agreed KPIs for 2015/16 were detailed in Appendix 1 to the report.  The number of 
clients supported across the services to 31 December 2015 had reduced slightly 
and Members were advised that this was mainly due to families provided more 
support over the festive period.  The average number of carers supporting clients 
had remained consistent over this period.  It was noted that the level and complexity 
of care could change for clients on a regular basis and this would have an impact on 
these figures.  Ms Collins explained that absence levels had been identified as an 
area for improvement and SB Cares Senior Management had been working with the 
Council's HR Shared Services team to develop reports to monitor and manage 
absence.  The figures now produced included all staff and the revised figures 
showed an absence rate of 6.69% for July 2015 and 5.81% for November 2015.  
With regard to the number of staff employed, Members were advised that the 
number of Full Time Equivalent (FTE) staff had increased by 2 and the number of 
staff paid had decreased by 15.  Ms Collins explained that this was due to the 
recruitment of permanent homecare staff employed to support additional contracts.  
A "spike" in the number of staff paid was the result of back pay being paid to all 
staff, including relief workers.  There were 7 posts currently being recruited and 
included homecare staff, maternity leave cover and vacant posts due to retirement.  
The report advised that KPIs for 2016/17 were being developed to monitor service 
quality; efficient delivery of services; sales targets; and staff.  These KPIs would 
include targets and would form part of the Business Plan to be presented to the 
Group in March 2016. 

Page 2



  
 (ii) Discussion followed and officers provided clarification on a number of points.  Ms 

Crombie acknowledged that, in terms of recruitment, there were challenges in some 
areas of the Borders but she was confident that all posts would be filled.  With 
regard to the number of hours worked by each carer, Ms Crombie explained that 
this depended on the care required; in some cases a client might require 6 visits per 
day and because of complex needs, this could involve 2 carers for each visit.  In 
addition, it was noted that clients preferred familiar carers and this was also taken 
into consideration whenever possible.  On a point of clarification, Ms Crombie 
explained that when the report mentioned "FTE staff", this referred to the total 
number of staff on the Payroll; the "number of staff" was used in reference to the 
actual number of staff paid.  Members asked that this be made clear in future 
reports.  With regard to absence management, it was noted that a number of 
measures such as utilising the Council's Occupational Health facility had been 
implemented to assist in the management of staff absence.  Mr Barr confirmed that 
target levels would be set and that benchmarking would assist in that process.  
Officers provided clarification on further points raised by Members and additional 
information would be included in the report being presented to the Strategic 
Governance Group at its special meeting in March 2016.   

 
DECISION 
(a)  NOTED:- 
  
 (i) the current KPIs for SB Cares; and 
 
 (ii) (b) the continuing development of KPIs for SB Cares. 
 
(b) AGREED that the difference between "Full Time Equivalent (FTE) staff" and 

the "number of staff" be made clear in future reports. 
 

5. CARE INSPECTORATE  
 With reference to paragraph 5 of the Minute of the meeting of 10 November 2015, there 

had been circulated copies of a report by the Operations Director of SB Cares on the 
Inspection of SB Cares Services by the Care Inspectorate.  The report advised that four 
care homes had been inspected since the previous report to the Strategic Governance 
Group in November 2015 and two of those reports had now been issued for St Ronan's in 
Innerleithen and Grove House in Kelso.  Both Homes had maintained their grades and the 
Care Inspectorate reports noted improvements in a number of areas.  One requirement 
and nine recommendations had been identified overall.  These were detailed in Appendix 
1 to the SB Cares report.  The recommended improvements had now been agreed with 
the Care Inspectorate along with an Action Plan for each service.  The two pending 
reports, in respect of Waverley in Galashiels and Saltgreens in Eyemouth were expected 
in the near future and would be presented to the Group in due course.  Discussion 
followed and Members agreed that it would be useful for future SB Cares reports to 
include both the previous and newly allocated grades side by side to show a direct 
comparison.  Ms Crombie provided clarification in terms of "requirement" and 
"recommendation" and Mr Wilson congratulated the service on achieving grades of 4 and 
5 for around 95% of these reports.  The Chairman acknowledged the work of staff in the 
Care Homes and SB Cares Senior Management Team in achieving such quality reports.  
 
DECISION 
 
(a) NOTED the report and details of one requirement and nine recommendations. 
 
(b) AGREED that future reports detailing Care Inspectorate assessment grades 

would include both the previous and newly allocated grades side by side to 
show a direct comparison. 

 

Page 3



  
 

6. AMENDMENTS TO DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 With reference to paragraph 6 of the Minute of the meeting of 10 November 2015, 

Members were advised that the dates for future meetings had been amended and were 
now scheduled for:- 

  
 15 March 2016 - 2.30pm 
 17 May 2016 - 2.00pm  (to be held in the Town Hall, Kelso) 
 9 August 2016 - 2.00pm 
 8 November 2016 - 2.00pm   
 7 February 2017 - 2.00pm   
 7 March 2017 - 2.00pm   
 16 May 2017 - 2.00pm.  
 
 DECISION 
 NOTED. 

 
7. PRIVATE BUSINESS  

DECISION 
 AGREED under Section 50A(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 

to exclude the public from the meeting during consideration of the business 
contained in the following items on the ground that they involved the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 6 and 8 of the 
part 1 of Schedule 7A to the Act.  

 
 

SUMMARY OF PRIVATE BUSINESS 
 

8. MINUTE  
 Members approved the Private Section of the Minute of 10 November 2015. 
 
9. EFFICIENCIES AND NEW INCOME 2015/16  
 Members considered a report by the Operations Director SB Cares. 

  
10. UPDATE BY MANAGING DIRECTOR, SB CARES 
 Members considered a verbal update by the Managing Director of SB Cares. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

The meeting concluded at 3.20 pm   

Page 4



Document is Restricted

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 7

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minute
	7 Minute
	8 Business Plan
	Item 8 - Appendix 1 - Business Plan Overview 2016-17 - LLPSGG - 15 March 2016


